
CITY OF SAN ANTONIO 
Convention, Sports, and Entertainment Facilities Department   P.O. Box 839966 
Purchasing and General Services Department SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78205 

 
 

ADDENDUM I 
 
 

SUBJECT: Request for Proposals for Audio Visual and Rigging Services, dated             
December 23, 2010  

 
DATE: January 13, 2010 
 
 
A. THE ABOVE MENTIONED RFP IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:  

 
1. Add:  RFP Exhibit 3 – Drawings, which is posted as a separate document immediately 

following Addendum I. 
 
 
B. QUESTIONS RECEIVED BY CITY STAFF AT THE PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 

AND SITE TOUR CONDUCTED ON JANUARY 10, 2011, ARE ANSWERED AS 
FOLLOWS:  

 

Question 1: Regarding the conflict of interest form specified in RFP Section X, Award of 
Contract and Reservation of Rights, subsection J, on pg. 15, to whom is the form 
submitted, and when and where?  

Response:  As stated in subsection J, Respondents are required to complete and submit a 
Conflict of Interest Questionnaire to the City Clerk not later than the 7th business 
day after the Respondent: (1) begins contract negotiations with the City; or (2) 
submits to the City an application, response to a request for proposals or bids, 
correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the City.    

 

Question 2: Is there a restriction on how many people with one company can view the City 
of San Antonio website where the RFP is to be downloaded?  

Response:  No.  
 

Question 3: Are there power outlets near the rigging points?  
Response:  No.  Power is located in the columns and in the floor.  
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Question 4: Are drawings of the structural steel and engineering documents available?  

Response:  Yes.  Drawings of the roof joist detail, section and hanging load criteria for 
Exhibit Halls C and D and Bridge Hall are attachments to this addendum and 
have been posted to the City’s website at 
http://www.sanantonio.gov/RFPListings/Content.aspx?id=1175.  Additional 
floor plans, specifications and engineering drawings for the Convention Center 
are available at the following website 
http://www.sanantonio.gov/convfac/HBGCC/hbgccfp.asp.  Lila Cockrell Theatre 
floor plans and engineering drawings are available at the following website 
http://www.sanantonio.gov/convfac/LCT/lcoverview.asp.  

  

Question 5: Are there rigging production rules?  
Response:  Yes.  Rigging requirements are included in RFP Exhibit 2 – Agreement, and the 

Agreement’s Exhibit C – Rigging Requirements on pages 34 – 37 and 
Agreement Exhibit F – City’s Operational Policies on pages 45 – 69. 

 

Question 6: Will dock space be provided for parking (to allow move-in and move-out of 
equipment)?  

Response:  Dock space is not permanently assigned, but is utilized by contractors as needed 
for event load-in and load-out.  Use of the docks during load-in and load-out is 
usually coordinated through the event planner.  Typically, however, the event 
planner assigns the responsibility of coordinating dock usage to their general 
contractor. 

 

Question 7: If it is an off-period before an event can a contractor make arrangements to use 
the docks to move-in and move-out equipment?  

Response: Yes.  Except for event load-in and load-out, docks can typically be utilized by 
contractors, unless being utilized by the City for some other purpose. 

 

Question 8: Excluding the available storage lease specified in the RFP is there any other 
additional storage?  

Response:  Per Article X of RFP Exhibit 2 – Agreement and its Exhibit D – City’s 
Designated Spaces Provisions on pages 38 – 40, the City will provide a minimal 
amount of office and storage space to the selected Respondent, if the selected 
Respondent so desires.  Also, per page 6 of RFP Section II Scope of Services, 
Additional Information, up to 3,385 sq. ft. of additional warehouse space may be 
offered for lease to the selected Respondent.     

   
 
C.  WRITTEN QUESTIONS RECEIVED BY CITY STAFF ARE ANSWERED AS 

FOLLOWS:  
 

Question 1: What is the operating budget of the current provider? 
Response: Respondents are to submit a proposed Annual Operating Budget based upon 

their own projections.  The evaluation committee will evaluate each proposal 
and score the information accordingly.  Information pertaining to the current 
provider’s operating budget is not relevant to the requirements of this RFP. 
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Question 2: On page 14 of the RFP, Section X, paragraphs A – D, it is our assumption that 

the City could award one or more AV providers as preferred contractors.  
However if you reference the Agreement, page 5, 3.1 under the Article III Rights 
Granted, and throughout that document it reads as there would be only one 
preferred AV contractor?  Can you please advise?  

Response: The language in RFP Section X is included in a majority of City solicitations.  It 
is intended to advise Respondents that should it be in the best interest of the 
City, multiple contracts may be awarded.  At this time, the City's desire is to 
award a single contract for either a) Preferred AV Services or b) Preferred AV 
Services and Exclusive Rigging Services; however, that determination will not 
be made until after proposals are reviewed.  

 

Question 3: In Article XVIII, 18.2 of the Agreement states, “At the conclusion of the second 
year of this Agreement, City may elect to terminate the Agreement on any basis 
stated in the Agreement and also if Contractor has not secured and provided 
service to at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the trade shows and conventions 
held during the first two-year period.”  How does the City measure and track the 
percentage of this business captured by the Provider?   What percentage of this 
business did the current provider capture annually during their contract term? 

Response: Presently, the current provider is earning in excess of 25% of the business on an 
annual basis.  The percentage of business is calculated by dividing the number of 
events serviced, as reported on monthly sales reports, by the total number of 
events held at the Facility.  Information pertaining to the business earned by the 
current provider is not relevant to the requirements of this RFP. 

 

Question 4: In Exhibit A of the Agreement, SBEDA Compliance Reports are due quarterly.  
How has the current provider performed in reaching the SBEDA Goals of the 
City of San Antonio?  How is this verified? 

Response: The City is currently implementing an electronic SBEDA-verification system 
that utilizes the internet, as well as email and other means to verify SBEDA 
utilization.  SBEDA verification is generally performed by dividing the total 
contract amount or gross sales subcontracted or assigned to other companies by 
the prime contractor’s total contract value, and documented by such information 
as copies of contracts, paid invoices, sales reports and earnings distributions, 
affidavits, and tax filings.  Information pertaining to the current provider’s 
SBEDA goals and performance is not relevant to the requirements of this RFP. 

 

Question 5: If audited financial statements are impractical or unattainable within the 
timeframe allotted, would a review or compilation be an acceptable substitute?  
Is there any other acceptable substitute? 

Response: Audited financial statements are the requirement.  If a Respondent does not have 
audited financial statements, financial statements that have some lesser 
assurance, such as a review or compilation, may be submitted; however, 
financial documents that do not include sufficient information or assurance will 
be evaluated accordingly. 
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Question 6: In Exhibit A of the Agreement, Equipment Reports are due annually.  What is 
the current inventory of the current provider?  Would the City like to see 
changes, additions, etc?  In other words, is the current inventory sufficient? 

Response: Respondents are to submit a proposed Equipment Plan based upon their own 
projections.  The evaluation committee will evaluate each proposal and score the 
information accordingly.  Information pertaining to the current provider’s 
equipment inventory is not relevant to the requirements of this RFP. 

 

Question 7: At the Pre-Proposal Conference the City’s desire for economical and green 
methods of submitting the RFP response was discussed, but it was also stated 
that 3-ring binders or branded presentation binders were acceptable.  Is that 
correct?   

Response: Yes. The original must be provided in a 3-ring binder with the remaining 10 
copies to be provided in a more economical fashion. However, Respondents may 
elect to provide all 10 copies in a 3-ring binder as well. 

 

Question 8: In regards to SBEDA, the national companies responding to the RFP can receive 
LBE points by having established branch offices with 10 or more employees.  
How does the City verify that the number of employees submitted is accurate? 

Response: For a branch office of a non-headquartered business to qualify as a “Local 
Branch Office” (or Local Business Enterprise), the branch office must be located 
in Bexar County for a least one year and must employ a minimum of ten (10) 
residents of Bexar County for use at the local branch office. 

 
 In response to RFP Attachment A, Part One – General Information and 

References, Respondents provide the number of employees.  By submitting a 
signed RFP Attachment F – Signature Page, Respondent agrees to fully and 
truthfully submit RFP Attachment A, Parts One – Three and understands that 
failure to fully disclose requested information may result in disqualification of 
proposal from consideration or termination of contract, once awarded.  
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